QUARTERLY BUSINESS DIRECTORY

AND GENERAL

TRADE CIRCULAR

OF THE

CITY OF KNOXVILLE.

FOR JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1869.

Vol. I. No. 1.

KNOXVILLE, TENN.,

PUBLISHED BY H. BARRY & CO., BOOK AND GENERAL JOB PRINTERS, Corner of Main and Prince Streets. 1869.



SHORT SKETCH OF KNOXVILLE.

In presenting this, the First Number of the Quarterly Business Directory of the City of Knoxville, and General Trade Circular, the Publishers deem it proper to give a short history of its origin, &c.

In February, 1792, says C. S. Williams, in his Knoxville Directory, published in 1859: "The town was established and called **Knoxville**, in honor of Maj. Gen. Henry Knox, then Secretary of War. The only inhabitants of the place at that time, were John Chislom, Mr. McLemee, Hugh Dunlap and Samuel and Nathaniel Cowan. The first named kept a tavern. Mr. Dunlap and the Messrs. Cowans, sold merchandise. The whole town then was a thicket of brushwood and grape vines, except a small portion in front of the river, where all the business was done" at that time. "The survey of the ground and division of it into lots, was made by Col. Charles McClung, probably under the direction of General James White, who owned the land. There never was any public sale of lots. The original owner, (Gen. White,) sold any person one of them for eight dollars, who would settle on and improve it."

The first number of the Knoxville *Gazette* was issued at Rogersville, in the year 1792, by Mr. Roulstone. In a short time he removed to Knoxville, and continued the publication of his paper for a number of years. The whole sum received by Mr. Roulstone, for printing the Acts and Journals of 1792, and other public papers, was only six hundred dollars.

In the year 1793 Knoxville was threatened with destruction at the hands of the Indians, Creeks and Cherokees, about fifteen hundred strong, lead by John Watts, a half-breed and Chief of the Cherokee Nation. Double Head was in the Company, Watts was Commander in Chief, and although Double Head was a renowned warrior, he seemed, on this occasion, to have been subject to the orders of Watts. Owing to the fact that a Station—Cavet's—was taken by the Savages on the 25th of September, of the same year, a dispute arose between the Creeks and Cherokees as to the murder of some children whom they had captured. The murder was

SKETC OF KNOXVILLE.

said to have been done by the Creeks. A dispute arose. Watts refused to proceed further. The party disbanded and Knoxville was saved. Knoxville, at that time, could only muster about forty fighting men; yet this brave little band, leaving two of their oldest number in the block house, on the spot now occupied by the Franklin House, marched out to meet the foe under the command of Col. James White, (afterwards General,) and proceeded to station themselves at an interval of twenty feet between each man. Orders were given by their heroic leader, to sell their lives at a fearful price, if an attack was made. Their Fathers, Mothers, Wives, Sisters, Children, and those they loved, not of kin, were there.

The citizens of Knoxville, on that occasion, manifested a degree of valor and courage which has been handed down to the present day. No more courageous men can be found in all this bright clime of ours than is to be found in Knoxville to-day, as well as when the City, in a vast wilderness, was composed of three or four houses.

In 1793 the first National troops were stationed in Knoxville, under the command of Capt. Carr, a Revolutionary officer. The name of his Lieutenant was Rickard. 'Tis said by an old citizen that the Convention of 1796 was held in a barracks, which they built immediately opposite the present Court House.

In the same year Col. Christy, commanding the United States troops at Knoxville, died, and was buried with martial and masonic honors, on what is now called College Hill. In digging the foundation for the main College building, two skeletons were exhumed, which were supposed to have been those of Indians interred there. An old citizen thinks they were the bones of Col. Christy and Mr. Ogden.

The first Territorial Assembly met in Knoxville on the 4th Monday of February, 1794. The members were thirteen in number, chosen from nine Counties, Knox sending two.

The second day all the members went to a place of worship, preceded by their Speaker and the Governor, where the Rev. Samuel Carrick, a Presbyterian minister, delivered a sermon from the 2d and 3d verses of the 1st chapter of the Epistle of St. Paul to Titus.

The Territorial Assembly, after continuing its labors for some time, at length adjourned, and met again in August following. At the August session, a charter was passed for a College, to be established in the vicinity of Knoxville, which was called "Blount" in honor of the then Governor.

In July, 1795, a road was opened from Knoxville to Nashville, so far as to allow the passage of a loaded wagon.

On the 11th of January, 1796, a Convention met here for the purpose of forming a State Constitution, and on the 6th of the following June, Tennessee was fully admitted into the Union. The delegates to that Convention unanimously resolved to receive nothing for their services on that oc-

SKETCH OF KNOX LLE.

casion. Knoxville, by a provision of the State Constitution, was the seat of Government, until 1802. Subsequent Legislatures kept it at the same place until 1807, when they removed to Kingston, and in a few days returned back to Knoxville, where they continued to meet until 1817, when the seat of Government was removed to Murfreesboro, where, after a few sessions, it was removed to Nashville, and there still remains.

In the early history of our town and country, two noted blood thirsty wretches, known as the Harps, infested Knox County. They made a crop on Beaver Creek; stole various kinds of stock from their neighbors, which they sold to citizens of Knoxville. They soon seemed to have become instigated by the devil, to do all that was wicked and atrocious. The first man they killed was young Coffee, on Beaver Creek. Six or seven became the victims of these fiends, who afterwards perished at the hands of a wronged and outraged public, without the help of court or jury.

Soon after the above events transpired, the navigation of our beautiful Holston was spoken of, and in 1827, a company was formed for the purchase of a boat. A gentleman, Col. W. B. A. Ramsey, now a citizen of middle Tennessee, was sent to Cincinnati to make the purchase. The boat, THE KNOXVILLE, was brought here and placed in its appointed work. It was not however the first boat brought to Knoxville. THE ATLAS preceded THE KNOXVILLE, and astonished the natives on its arrival. The master, Capt. Connor, with his Pilot, Capt. Andrew T. Jones, (the father of our present estimable County Court Judge, C. W. Jones,) found himself at the time as great a hero as is Generals Grant or Lee, to-day.

Our town has always been famed for its good health and good morals; but, as in all cities, we have had our scourges. In 1837 and 1838 the place suffered greatly from severe bilious fevers, and caused many deaths. The origin of this fatal disease was supposed to be from the mill ponds, which, in the summer seasons had become comparatively dry. Large deposits of decomposing matter became exposed to the sun in 1836–7. The malaria again showed itself in 1838, by more sickness, of a like nature, and proved very fatal. The mill dams were consequently ordered to be torn down as a nuisance, since which time Knoxville has been remarkably healthy.

In 1855 the East Tennessee and Georgia Rail Road was completed to this place and tended greatly to destroy the river trade, which had hitherto been good.

Knoxville has now twelve Churches, Protestant, and one Roman Catholic. The large body of the first inhabitants, who cared for religion, it seems, were Presbyterians. The Methodist Church was established previous to the 2nd Presbyterian. Its members originally worshipped in a frame house, east of the town, now known as Methodist Hill. Now they have a magnificent edifice dedicated to the worship of God, in a central portion of our city. The Episcopal Church was organized in 1844, and the Baptist soon afterward. Of Knoxville and its early history, much can be said, which we trust we will be able to lay before our readers at an early date. While Knoxville, together with hundreds of the cities of the South, was fast tending to a population which her fine location, her beautiful river, on which she is situated, and her fertile valleys and beautiful hills, on which nature's God seemed to have lavished his richest blessings, a population which we natives of the soil, and those who had cast their destinies with us, from other countries, from other climes, might justly be proud—just then came war.

> "O war! begot in pride and luxury, The child of malice and revengeful hate; Thou impious good and good impiety! Thou art the foul refiner of a State, Unjust scourge of men's iniquity; Sharp easer of corruptions desperate! Is there no means but that a sin sick land Must be let blood with such a boist'reus hand."

Knoxville did not escape the wide desolation which swept over the entire South, and much of our now rebuilt town was destroyed from 1861 to 1865. During the memorable siege in November 1863, when the Confederate troops, under Gen. Longstreet, had the town almost surrounded for several days, Gen. Burnside, commander of the Federal forces, found it necessary to burn many buildings, consisting of elegant residences, machine shops, turning tables, and much that was valuable and beautiful to our town. North of the Rail Road was almost entirely consumed. But when the smoke of war cleared away, and the dove with the olive branch came, all was peace. Then it was that Knoxville began to assume the dignity of a city, and spring again into life as by magic. During the years that have since passed, more than hundreds of houses have been erected in the city and suburbs; some of which would do credit to any city this side of New York. Since the war, the Rail Road from this place, known as the Knoxville and Kentucky Rail Road, has been completed some thirty-six miles, to the richest and most inexhaustible coal fields in America, situated on Coal Creek, in Anderson County. Very soon, we hope, said road will be completed, thereby giving us direct connection with Louisville, Cincinnati, and all the cities of the North.

Our road South, the Knoxville and Charleston Rail Road, which will when completed, put Knoxville in direct communication with Charleston, South Carolina,—a seaboard town—is now being rapidly pushed forward, under a wise and energetic corps of men. The road is already completed to Maryville, the County site of Blount County, distance sixteen miles from Knoxville.

It would amply repay a visitor to examine our various Machine Shops and Manufactories. They are numerous and are first-class. To persons who seek new homes, whether he be merchant, mechanic, lawyer, doctor, or his profession what it may be, no town or city holds out greater inducements and rarer attractions than the City of Knoxville does at the present time.

The General Assembly of the State of Tennessee, at its fall session, 1868, passed a law making Knoxville proper and East Knoxville, one and the same. Heretofore Knoxville and East Knoxville, were separate and distinct bodies, the dividing line being first Creek. Knoxville proper, elected her municipal officers, and East Knoxville did the same; but on petition of many prominent citizens of East Knoxville, the corporation was made one, without any extension or alteration of corporation lines other than to abolish the line separating Knoxville proper from East Knoxville. The city proper and East Knoxville, have not as yet been re-warded, consequently, at our last municipal election the polls were opened as before the passage of the bill consolidating the two corporations. Hereafter the City Council will meet at the City Hall, on Market Square, a commodious building, erected during the past year, for the purpose of Recorder's Office, Fireman's Hall, Calaboose, Engine Room, Policeman's Head Quarters, &c.

During the year 1868 our City suffered severely from fire, a fine block of brick buildings on the corner of Gay and Main Streets, was entirely destroyed, which as yet are not rebuilt.

We have a Steam Fire Engine, of superior quality, under the management of an energetic company, for the protection of the property of our City. We have, also, a hand Engine, in complete working order, with a capacity for doing good work, and which has rendered valuable services in the past, and we have no doubt will be just as effective in the future.

We expect in our next number, to be able to give a view of the East Tennessee University, with its President and Faculty complete, together with many other matters of great interest to the business portion of our City.

We return our most heartful acknowledgments to our friends and neighbors, WILL. R. MCBATH, Circuit Court Clerk, and WM. RULE, County Court Clerk, and others, for their kindness and gentlemanly bearing in favor of our BUSINESS DIRECTORY for the City of Knoxville.

Long may they live and prosper for their kindness and liberality towards us.

the publication of our First Number has been necessarily delayed beyond our former expectations, from various causes; but we confidently expect to be able, eventually, to give entire satisfaction. If there should be any deficiences in this Number, as we are fearful there may be, we will endeavor to supply them in our next Number.

KNOY COUNTY OFFICERS.

Special attention is called to our enterprising and public spirited advertising friends, who have, by their noble and laudable liberality, manifested a more than commendable desire to build up and encourage our fast growing City on its march to greatness and importance, and place it, what it is shortly destined to be at no distant day, among the largest and most populous Cities of the proud and patriotic State of Tennessee.

The Publishers, relying upon the liberality and encouragement of the true Business Men and Mechanics of the City, (of the latter of whom the Senior Publisher professes to be one of long standing,) have commenced this Periodical with an issue of between 2,000 and 3,000 copies, which they expect, during the year, to increase from 5,000 to 10,000. This, being a Quarterly Periodical, (once every three months,) will constitute, decidedly, the best and most popular medium of Advertising ever introduced into the State of Tennessee.

KNOX COUNTY OFFICERS.

Court House .- North side of Main, between Gay and Prince streets.

SUPREME COURT.

Regular term commences at Knoxville the second Monday in September. Judges.-H.G. SMITH, GEO. ANDREWS and J. O. SHACKLEFORD. Clerk.-M. L. PATTERSON, office up stairs in Court House. Attorney General for State.-THOS. H. COLDWELL. Deputy Register for East Tennessee.-R. D. JOUROLMON, East end Court House.

CHANCERY COURT.

Regular Terms first Monday in April and October. Judge.-O. P. TEMPLE, office East side of Gay street. Clerk and Master.-D. A. DEADERICK, office up stairs in Court House.

CIRCUIT COURT.

Regular Term second Monday of February, June and October. Judge.-E. T. HALL, office back of Court House. Clerk.-WHLL R. MCBATH, office north west corner of Court House. Deputy Clerk.-E. W. ADKENS, office north west corner Court House. Aty Gen. for Circuit.-J. M. THORNBURGH, office on Main st., in old Union Bank.

COUNTY COURT OF KNOX COUNTY.

Regular County Court every month, and Quarterly Court first Mondays in January, April, July and October.

Misdemeaner Courts, second Mondays in April, August and December. Judge.-C. W. JONES, office on Main street, south west corner of Court House. County Clerk.-WM. RULE, south east corner of Court House. Deputy County Clerk.-J. S. A. BLANG, south east corner Court House. Sheriff of Knox County.-M. D. BEARDEN. Deputy Sheriff's.-V. F. GOSSETT, JOHN GIRBS and WM. SMITH. County Register.—ROBERT L. HALL, office south ast corner Court House. County Trustee.—H. L. W. MYNATT, office south east corner Court House. Tax Collector.—H. C. TARWATER, office, County Clerk's office. Ranger.—CHARLES MORROW, office corner of Gay and Main streets, up stairs. Surveyor.—S. D. LEINART. Entry Taker.—WM. F. SEAY. Coroner.—DAVID NELSON. Commissioners Poor House.—J. M. MURPHY, JNO. GIBBS and H. CLAPP.

Commissioners Poor House.-J. M. MURPHY, JNO. GIBBS and H. CLAPP. Superintendent of County Work House.-WM. C. BRANDON.

MAGISTRATES.

1st. District.—R. D. Jourolman, W. F. Seay, Charles Morrow, I. P. Alley. 2d.—W. A. A. Conner, James Roach. 3rd.—James M. Murphy, Randolph Shipe. 4th.—H. Clapp, S. J. Tarver. 5th.—J. H. Mynatt, Wm. Shell. 6th.—J. W. Fowler. W. Y. Cox. 7th.—J. M. McCloud, G. W. Carnes. 8th.—F. A. Armstrong C. W. Karnes. 9th.—W. E. Hedgecock, C. L. Howard. 10th.—John Roberts, James A. Rubel. 11th.—David Nelson, W. L. Cottrell. 12th.—J. H. Nickle, M. Thompson. 13th.—G. W. Summers, J. T. Doyle. 14th.—J. P. Ford, Lewis Anderson 15th.,—D. F. D'Armond. Wm. Wilhite. 16th.—A. C. E. Callen, G. W. Newman. 17th.—Thos. McMillan, M. W. Huffaker. 18th.—J. M. Carter, P. H. Skaggs. 19th.—A. F. Smith, A. R. Trotter.

U. S. COURTS FOR EASTERN DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE.

Convenes in Knoxville the Second Mondays in January and July.

U. S. CIRCUIT COURT .- Noah H. Swayne, Judge-and M. L. Hall, Clerk.

U. S. DISTRICT COURT .-- Connally F. Trigg, Judge-and M. L. Hall, Clerk.

Attorney General-C. W. Hall, Office No. 2 rear of Court House.

Chief Marshal-Blackstone McDannel, office Main St., upstairs, 2 doors E. Ct. House U. S. Commissioners-M. L. Hall, H. M. Aikin

BOUNDARIES OF WARDS.

CITY OF KNOXVILLE.

FIRST WARD-Comprises all the Territory between first and second Creek and the River and Main street.

SECOND WARD-All the Territory between first and second Creek and Main and Cumberland.

THIRD WARD-Comprises all the Territory between first and second Creek and between Cumberland to Union and Grove street.

FOURTH WARD-All the Territory north of Union and Grove to the Railroad between first and second Creek,

FIFTH WARD-All the Territory north of the Railroad to Corporate Limits.

EAST KNOXVILLE.

FIRST WARD-Comprises all the Territory east of first Creek to Corporate Limits and between the River and Cumberland.

SECOND WARD-Comprises all the Territory east of first Creek to Corporate Limits and between Cumberland and East Clinch streets.

THIRD WARD—Comprises all the Territory east of first Creek to Corporate Limits and all between East Clinch to Hill street.

FOURTH WARD-Comprises all the Territory cast of first Creek to Corporate Limits, from Hill street to first Creek, north.

3

CITY GOVERNMENT OF KNOXVILLE.

ELECTION FIRST SATURDAY OF JANUARY, EACH YEAR.

Aldermen's Meeting every two weeks, on Friday Evening, 7 o'clock.

MAYOR.-M. D. Bearden.

RECORDER AND TREASURER .- Wm. H. Swan.

CHIEF MARSHAL.-S. C. Morley.

Assistant MARSHALS.—L. H. Osborne, B. W. Reeder, R. S. Dakin, Thos. Wells, B. F. Camp, S. C. Smith, W. A. Harper, Robt. Wilds, W. C. Robeson, Wm. Fisher, John A. Dobson, W. P. Jones.

MARKET MASTER AND WEIGHER.-Jefferson Jett.

CITY TAX COLLECTOR .- John L. Hudiburg.

STREET SUPERINTENDENT.-H. J. Kinzel.

ALDERMEN:

First W	ard	-Wm. C. Brandon and H. Barry.
Second	"	M. F. Smith and Jos. Richards.
Third	"	J. W. Hope and Isaac Gammon.
Fourth	"	Geo. Powell and Charles Morrow.
Fifth	"	W. P. Hayes and J. T. Ambrose.

EAST KNOXVILLE.

First W	ard	-M. J. Childress and J. H. Sooy.
Second	"	John Williams and David Brown.
Third	"	Noble Johnson and Saml. McLemore.
Fourth	"	Mathew Householder and Luke Wilds.

MARRIAGES.

MARRIAGE LICENSES

Issued by the Clerk of the County Court of Knox County, from November 26th, 1868, to January 15th, 1869:

1868.

66

Nov. 26.-John Buyington, to Margaret Homer.

" Daniel Beets, to Margaret F. Shelton.

" " Wm. M. Pryor, to J. L. White.

" 28.—George Huffaker, to Margaret Lane.

" 30.-James H. Fraker, to Laurance Moore.

Dec. 1.-William M. Moore, to Elizabeth J. Demarcus.

" " J. A. Walker, to Kate E. Baker.

5 Charles Walker, to Caroline Runnions.

- " " Thomas S. Northern, to Bettie Sherrod.
- " J. L. Waller, to Amanda M. Steele.
 - " Ira Lovelace, to Alice D. Yule.

MARRIAGES CONTINUED.

Dec.	7	-Madison Cox, to Margaret McFarland.
	9	James W. Middleton, to Martha G. King.
"	"	Stephen C. Dodge, to Clara C. Fleck.
"	11	Lemuel M. Dick, to Harriet R. McMillan.
"	17	C. L. Bowling, to Mattie W. Hall.
"	"	J. J. Martin, to Prudence W. Morrow.
"	19	John Hourd, to Eliza Bell.
"	21	Somers I. Van Gilder, to Emma H. Atkin.
"	"	Wm. H. Oakes, to Myra E. Weaver.
"	22	James H. Cline, to Mary B. Montgomery.
"	"	Wm. Fisher, to Saleda Pratt.
"	"	Henry Browning, to Lucinda Cloninger.
"	**	Robert Jones, to Mary Williams.
"	23	Elijah R. Everett, to Martha J. Harriman.
46	""	James H. Knott, to Rebecca Bishop.
"	"	A. J. Griffith, to Clementine Walker.
"	24	H. F. Ryan, to Nancy E. Lucy.
"	"	Wm. Johnson, to Mary J. Ancles.
	"	David Beatie, to Margaret Kennedy.
"	"	O. H. Lambden, to Sarah S. Pugh.
"	25	Edward Moore, to Nancy A. Anderson.
.66	26	Marion J. Maxey, to Harriet A. Alley.
"	27	John Brewer, to Elizabeth Brandon.
"	28	R. L. Mullens, to Ellen Lones.
"	30	S. T. Mynatt, to Mary E. S. Gammon.
**	"	G. W. Miller, to Rebecca E. Greer.
"	"	Joseph Hinchil, to Sarah E. Bates.
"	31	H. L. Smith, to Sarah Elledge.
18	69.	
Jan.	2	-Joseph Monday, to Jane Simpson.
"	"	Madison Tummins, to Elizabeth Jackson.
"	"	Franklin Roach. to Diana Dunsimorl.
"	5	James Cox, to Susan J. Mikles.
"	6	James Endaley, to Susan Compton.
"	"	Michael Condon, to Catherine Moore.
46	7	G. C. Lankford, to Sallie E. Cassady.
	12	Wesley Weaver, to Rebecca Arnold.
	"	Adam Brakebill, to Caroline Pickle.
"	13	John Luttrell, to Lucy A. Plumlee.
"	14	Thomas J. Boseman, to Sarah Grove.

COLORED.

	00			Conc	ALLELY.	
18	68.					
Dec.	10	-Wm.	Fountain.	to Nan	cy Newton.	
"	09	Talleo	Nelson, to	Nanor	Minton	
	20	Luke	reison, u) maney	Minton.	

1869.	
Jan. 4Gaines Armstrong, to Betty Bowm	ian.
" 7 Joseph Fountain, to Malinda Dav	is.
" 12 Campbell Armstrong, to Sarah Bl	lend.
" " Anderson Welker, to Harriet A.	Brown.
" " Alex. Armstrong, to Lettie Brigh	t.

DEATHS.

DEATHS, &C.

DIED.—In this vicinity, on the 9th October, 1868, at the residence of his son, A. G. Jackson, Esq., Capt. JOSEPH JACKSON, an old and highly esteemed citizen, aged about 87 years.

In this City, Dec., 14th, at the residence of her son-in-law, S. S. Thompson, Mrs. SARAH McDANNEL, one of the oldest citizens, aged about 81 years.

In this City, Dec., 16th, 1868, Mr. F. R. PERRY, aged about 24 years. In this City, on Friday evening, Jan. 1st, 1869, Gen. JOHN CROZIER RAMSEY, Attorney at Law, and for several years Attorney General of the Eastern District of Tennessee.

In this County, on Saturday morning, Jan. 2d, 1869, Mr. JOHN D. ROBERTS, Printer, aged about 30 years.

In this City, SANFORD MASON, (colored,) well known as Janitor of the various Courts of Knoxville, for many years, aged about 70 years.

In this City, at his residence on Cumberland street, Jan. 24th, 1869, TANDY DOWELL, aged about 63 years.

TABLE OF WEIGHTS AND MEASURES.

One Bushel.	Pounds
Salt	
Corn, Shelled	
Corn, in Ear	70
Turnips	
Bran	
Stone Coal	
Unslacked Lime	
Corn Meal	
Wheat	
Peas	
Rye	
Oats	
Irish Potatoes	
Sweet Potatoes	
White Beans	60
Clover Seed	60
Timothy Seed	
Flax Seed	
Blue-Grass Seed	14
Buck Wheat	
Dried Peaches	
Dried Apples	
Onions	

KNOXVILLE POST OFFICE HOURS.

Office, east side of Gay, between Cumberland and Church streets.

The	Eastern	Mail	Closes	10:15	A. M.
"	"	"	Arrives	1	P. M.
" "	"	"	Open for Delivery	1:30	P. M.
The	Western	Mail	Closes	12:15	P. M.
"	"	"	Arrives Open for Delivery	12:00	М.
The	Clinton]	Mail	Arrives	11:30	A. M.
"	**	"	Closes	3:00	P. M.
The	Maryvill	le Ma	il Departs on Mondays, Thursdays	and Saturd	ays, at

6 A. M. Arrives Mondays, Thursdays and Saturdays, 6 P. M.

The Maynardsville Mail arrives Thursdays at 11 A. M., and departs Thursdays 12 M.

The Rutledge Mail arrives Tuesdays and Fridays at 12 P. M., and departs Tuesdays and Fridays at 12:30 P. M.

Boyd's Creek Mail arrives Friday at 12 M., and departs Friday at 1 P. M.

The Post Office opens at 8 A. M., and closes at 6 P. M. Office open on Sunday at 1:30 P. M., for one hour. J. C. LUTTRELL, P. M. S. B. LUTTRELL, Assistant. CHARLES WHITE, Clerk.

RAIL ROAD TIME TABLES.

East Tennessee and Virginia Rail Road. Leaves Knoxville at 11:17 a. m.....Arrives at Bristol 6:40 p. m. Leaves Bristol at 5:37 a. m.....Arrives at Knoxville 12:59 p. m.

East Tennessee and Georgia Rail Road.

Leaves Knoxville 1:14 p. m.....Arrives at Chattanooga 7:30 p. m. Leaves Chattanooga 4:15 a. m.....Arrives at Knoxville 11:07 a. m.

Knoxville and Kentucky Rail Road.

Knoxville and Charleston Rail Road.

Leaves Kr	noxville for Little	e River and	I Maryville	3:30 p. m.
				9:30 a.m.

KNOXVILLE LEATHER COMPANY.

Manufacturers of Sole, UPPER, HARNESS, SKIRTING, KIP AND CALF, ALSO LEATHER BELTING.

JNO. S. VAN GILDER, President.

F. A. R. SCOTT, Secretary.

URCH DIRECTORY.

CHURCH DIRECTORY.

First Presbyterian.—N. E. Cor. Church and State Streets. Rev. Jas. Park, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 10½ a.m., and 7 p. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening. Sabbath School 9 a.m. Bible Class meeting 2 p. m.

Second Presbyterian.—N. W. Cor. Prince and Clinch Streets. Rev. N. Bachman, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 10½ a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 9 a. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening.

Methodist Episcopal.—Church Street, between Prince and Crooked.— Rev. J. W. Mann, Pastor. Preaching Sabbath at 11 a. m., and 6½ p. m. Sabbath School 9.a. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening.

Methodist Episcopal Church South.—Church Street, between Gay and Prince. Rev. G. Taylor, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 10½ a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 9 a. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening.

Baptist.—Gay Street, between Clinch and Church. Rev. S. H. Smith, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 101 a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 9 a. m., Union Sabbath School 2 p. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening.

Episcopalian.—N. E. Cor. Cumberland and Crooked Streets. Rev. Thos. W. Humes, Rector. Preaching 101 a.m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 9 a. m. Lecture Wednesday evening.

Episcopal.—(Epiphany,) Broad Street, North Knoxville. Rev. Wm. Mowbray, Rector. Preaching, Sabbath at 10½ a. m. Sabbath School 94 a. m., and 2½ p. m.

Shieldstown Church.—Under the auspices of Second Presbyterian Church. Preaching, Sabbath 10 a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 2 p. m.

Unitarian.—Services at Union Bank Building, Main Street. Dr. Saltmarsh, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 10¹/₂ a. m.

Catholic.—Church of the Immaculate Conception, corner Crooked and Vine Streets. Rev. M. J. Finnegan, Pastor. 1st Mass, Sabbath 8 a. m., 2d, 10½ a. m. Sabbath School, 2 p. m. Vespers 3½ p. m.

COLORED CHURCHES.

Methodist.—Logan's Chapel, corner Marble Alley, between Gay and Water Streets. Rev. A. E. Anderson, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 10¹/₂ a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 9 a. m. and 2 p. m. Class meeting Wednesday evening. Prayer meeting Friday evening.

Shiloh Presbyterian.—Corner Clinch and Henley Streets. Rev. George Levere, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath 10½ a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School at 2½ p. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening.

Baptist.—Patton Street, East Knoxville, between Mabry and E. Hill Streets. Rev. Wm. Howell, Pastor. Preaching, Sabbath at 10½ a. m., and 7 p. m. Sabbath School 2½ p. m. Prayer meeting Wednesday evening. FIRE DEPARTMENT & INVRANCE CO'S.

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

FOUNTAIN FIRE COMPANY No. 1.

Engine Room, North Corner City Hall, Market Square.

The City is furnished with a magnificent Steam Fire Engine, ("J. C. Luttrell,") manufactured by the Silsby Island Works, which is worked by a Volunteer Fire Company, composed of citizens. The Engine is of superior quality, well cared for, and well worked, when required. A practical Engineer is employed to care for the same, whose duty it is to be with the Engine at all times, and see that it is in perfect working order. The Company consists of about one hundred men: the Officers, as follows:

Will. R. McBath, Foreman; T. P. McNichols, First Assistant Foreman; W. H. McCampbell, Second Assistant Foreman; T. A. Burrier, First Engineer; Carrick Park, Second Engineer; Mat. Swan, Third Engineer; Sanford C. Smith, Secretary; F. W. Walker, Treasurer; Z. Taylor Barry, Foreman Hose; Jas. Householder, Assistant Foreman Hose; George Sedgewick, First Pipeman; Chas. Youngblood, Second Pipeman; C. B. Nance, Third Pipeman; H. Goodman, Fourth Pipeman; Robt. Brown, Door Keeper. Regular Meeting first Thursday Evening each Month. Drill, second Thursday Afternoon each Month.

KNOXVILLE FIRE COMPANY No. 2.

Engine Room, West Corner City Hall, Market Square.

The City is, also, furnished with an excllent Hand Fire Engine, in charge of a Colored Company, which is well manned, and will doubtless render valuable service should occasion require. The Officers are as follows:

Pleas. J. Jackson, Captain; Wm. Nelson, Assistant; Thos. Miner, Secretary; Hark Williams, Assistant Secretary; John Johnson, Treasurer; Wm. Thomas, Engineer. Regular Meeting and Drill, Monday Evening of each week.

THERE is, also, another Hand Fire Engine, which has recently been transferred to East Knoxville, but, as yet, a Company has not been organized to take charge of it.

INSURANCE AGENCIES.

Hartford Fire Insurance Co., of Hartford. Phœnix Insurance Co., of Hartford. JNO. S. VAN GILDER, Agent.

Ætna Fire Insurance Co., of Hartford.

Home Insurance Co., New Haven.

Georgia Home Insurance Co., of Columbus. HUGH L. McClung, Agt. Queen Fire Insurance Co., Liverpool and London. E. B. CLAPP, Agt. Ætna Life Insurance Co. SMITH & RITCHEY, Agents.

BANKS.

First National Bank.

R. R. Swepson, *President*; R. M. McClung, *Cashier*. East side of Gay, between Church and Clinch Streets.

Exchange and Deposit Bank.

John Baxter, President; E. P. Bailey, Cashier. East side of Gay, between Church and Clinch Streets.

Peoples' Bank.

C. M. McGhee, *President*; J. R. Mitchell, *Cashier*. West side of Gay, between Church and Clinch Streets.

Knoxville Bank.

John S. Van Gilder, *President*; P. Lea Rogers, *Cashier*. West side of Gay, between Clinch and Union Streets.

BENEVOLENT INSTITUTIONS.

Masters Lodge, No. 244.—Regular meetings 3rd Monday evening of each month, at Hall, up stairs, Gay st., between Cumberland and Church.

Pearl Chapter, No. 24, meets first Monday evening of each month, at Hall, up stairs, Gay st., between Cumberland and Church.

Cœur de Leon Commandery, meets second Monday evening of cach month, at Hall, up stairs, Gay st., between Cumberland and Church.

East Tennessee Lodge, No. 34, I. O. O. F., meets Tuesday night of each week, at Atkin Block, up stairs, between Main and Cumberland streets.

Young Men's Christian Association, meets every Thursday evening, at Whig Building, Gay street.

Holston Lodge No. 36, Independent Order Good Templars, meets every Monday evening, at Whig Building, Gay street.

Knoxville Division No. 3, Sons of Temperance, meets every. Thursday evening at Temperance Hall, East Knoxville.

Knoxville Temperance Auxiliary Association, meets semi-monthly on Friday evening.

Literary and Benevolent Society of St. Vincent of Paul, meets at Catholic Church.

MISCELLANEOUS.

East Tennessee University, College Hill, west end of Main street. Rev. Thos. W. Humes, President.' Geo. M. White, Secretary and Treasurer.

Chi Delta Society, at East Tennessee University.

Philomathesian Society, at East Tennessee University.

Tennessee Deaf and Dumb School, corner Locust and Asylum streets.

Knoxville Gas Light Co., Geo. M. Branner, President, office Main street, between Prince and Crooked.

MISCELLANEOUS-GRO ERIES, &C.

Assessor U. S. Internal Revenue, D. A. C. Ppenter. Assistants, B. P. Stacy and Sam. B. Dow. Chief Clerk, Chas. A. Rice. Office over First National Bank, Gay St., between Clinch and Church.

Collector U. S. Internal Revenue, Col. R. K. Byrd. Deputy, J. M. Denning. Office, Ault Block, up-stairs, Church St., between Gay and Prince.

Office Southern Express Co.-N. S. Woodward, Agent-Gay St., between Clinch and Church. Closes for Eastern Train at 10:15. Closes for Western Train at 12:15.

Superintendent Public Instruction, Knox County, M. C. Wilcox. Office, Cumberland St., under Lamar House.



WM. T. BELL, Proprietor.

BUYS AND SELLS RAILROAD TICKETS.

KNOXVILLE STOVE WAREHOUSE, 31 Gay Street, Knoxville, Tenn.

ES AND TIN-WARE.

(Col. L. C. Hoss's Old Stand.)

Attention is respectfully called to the fact that we are now receiving a large and well selected stock of



Both for WOOD and COAL; among which we may mention as pre-eminent for their good qualities, the

"DICTATOR" AND "BUCK."

We claim for these Stoves a superiority over all others, and which we will warrant to give satisfaction. We also have a full supply of medium and CHEAP STOVES, so that we are able to suit the taste and purse of all. We have a fine assortment of

TIN-WARE,

Manufactured by ourselves; Stamped and Japanned Ware, Planished and French Ware, in endless variety,

WOODEN AND WILLOW WARE,

In fact, almost any article that may be needed in the house-furnishing line.

TIN ROOFING AND GUTTERING

Will be made a speciality with us, and we warrant all our work to be as represented. Repairing done at short notice. Goods delivered in any part of the City free of charge. Very Respectfully,

HEAP & CLAPP.

Knoxville, Tenn., Jan., 1869.

QUARTERLY BUSINESS DIRECTORY OF THE CITY OF KNOXVILLE, For 1869.

ABBREVIATIONS.

bbetween.	ne
CCorner.	8 S south side.
eeast.	ssouth.
e seast side.	ststreet.
n wnorth-west.	stsstreets.
n	wwest.
oppopposite.	wswest side.

A

Abernathy & Marsh, Attorneys at Law, e s Gay st, over Exchange and Deposit Bk-Adkins E W., Notary Public and deputy Circuit Clerk, n w c Court House Aikin H M., Attorney at Law and U S Commissioner, Odd Fellows building, e s Gay Ault Henry, Wholesale and Commission Merchant, w s Gay b Cumberland and Ch. Anderson Allen, Barber and Hair Dresser, w s Gay, under Lamar House Abercrombie Jack, Barber and Hair Dresser, w s Gay, under the Lamar House Atkin & Coffman, Dealers in Stoves and Tin-ware, no. 13 Gay street Atkin S T., builder, manufacturer Sash, Doors, Blinds, &c., Water st. mouth 1st creek Allison George, Boot Maker, no 70 w s Gay street, b Church and Clinch Ackerman A Frank, Carpenter and Builder, corner Church and State streets Adkisson & Walker, retail dealers in Dry Goods and Groceries, w s Gay street Anderson, Rev Alfred E. Pastor Logan's Chapel, c Marble Alley b Gay and Water sts Atkin House, E T White, proprietor, north side railroad, near depot Alexander Dr. M.M., Physician, Church street, between Prince and Crooked Alley I P., Justice of the Peace, east side of Gay between Main and Hill streets

B

Bell Wm. T., proprietor City Omnibus Line, cor Main and State streets Branch Office Atna Insurance Company, corner Gay and Clinch streets, east side Burger V., & Son, dealers in Dry Goods and Clothing, no. 12 Gay street Brandon Wm C., Superintendent County Work House, at old jail building Bailey F K., M D., office on Prince street, between Clinch and Church streets Bell Wm M., Livery and Exchange Stable, on Prince b Cumberland and Church s's Belitz Charles, Boot and Shoe Maker, west side of market square Betterton W J., & Bro., wholesale Liquor and Tobacco, c Market Sq. and Asylum sts Burrier Thomas A., Lock and Gunsmith, west side of market square Baker T., Saloon keeper, east side of market square Boyd John M., Physician and Surgeon, Church street, between State and Gay Bearden R M., wholesale dealer in Liquors, 44 Gay street, west side Burt Joseph, Bridge Builder, corner of Broad and Bellevue streets Baxter, Champion & Ricks, Attorneys at Law, north side of Main street Barry & McDannel, Bakers and Confectioners, 10 Gay street, west side Brown David, Boot and Shoe Maker, south side of Main, b Gay and State streets Brockway C., proprietor of the Bell House, corner of Main and State streets Barry H., & Co., General Book and Job Printers, corner of Main and Prince streets Barry H Clay, printer, with H Barry, Job Printing Office, corner Main and Prince st

30

NESS DIRECTORY.

Barry Z Taylor, printer, with H Barry, Job Printing Office, c Main and Prince st Bearden M D., Mayor, Sheriff, &c., corner of Prince and Hill streets

Bissinger S., & Son, Merchant Tailors and dealers in Clothing, c Gay and Clinch sts Blang J S A., Deputy County Clerk, office in County Court Clerk's Office

Boren R M., dealer in Provisions, Groceries, etc., west side Gay b Clinch and Union Burton & Co., in Dry Goods, Grocerics and Produce, corner of Gay and Clinch streets Brown Geo., Attorney at Law, e s Gay, one door s S D Mitchell & Co's drug store Bradley H L., Dry Goods, Groceries, Boots, Shoes, Hats, etc., 128 Gay street c Union Brooks W L., Eating Saloon, west side Gay street

Brett R., & Co. Dry Goods, Groceries, etc., Broad street near Knoxville Foundry Brown R H., Dry Goods and Groceries, Gay street between Reservoir and Vine

Cruze & Adney, manufacturers of Tin and Sheet Iron Ware, no. 76 Gay street Christian & Co., Clothing, Dry Goods and Groceries, 15 Gay street, east side Cannon Houston, Boot and Shoe Maker, south side of Main, b Gay and State streets Childress M J., dealer in Groceries and Produce, e side of Gay b Main and Hill sts Chamberlain & Albers, wholesale and retail Druggists, e s Gay street, no.'s 9 and 11 Cohn Solomon, dealer in Produce, etc., e s of Gay st. south Cowan, McClung & Co. Cooper & Hudiburgh, dealers in Dry Goods and Groceries, c Union st and market sq. Campbell Dr A J., M D., with Matt Hill & Co., market square

Cullinane John, Saloon Keeper, west side of market square

Cuquel & Pillet, Merchant Tailors, west side of market square

Cooper J J., dealer in Produce, etc., west side of market square Curtis & Johnson, U S Claim Agents, east side of Gay street, over First National Bank Cowan, McClung & Co., wholesale Dry Goods, Groceries, etc., e s Gay b Main and Cumb Clarke, Quaife & Co., Iron Founders, on Knoxville and Kentucky railroad

Cardwell Dr P H., Dentist, office on Church street, between Gay and State

Coffin, Martin & Co., wholesale Grocers and Commission Merchants, Coffin block Gay st Collester A H., Lumber Merchant, east side Water street, on E T & Va. Railroad

Cooper J L., Billiards, Bar and Restaurant, east side of Gay street in Deaderick's Hall Chapin M P., Book Store 91 Gay street, between Church and Clinch streets

Camp Ben. F., Assistant Marshal of the City, office City Hall

Cocke & Henderson, Attorneys at Law, east side Gay street, opposite Lamar House Crozier J H., & Sons, Attorneys at Law, east side Gay street

Connor Peter, Saloon and Confectionery, west side of Gay street

Casey T J., dealer in Dry Goods, Groceries, etc., Main street East Knoxville

Cocke & Sliger, Blacksmiths, first creek, north side Cumberland street

Clark H W., Grocery and Provision Store, on Broad Street, near Foundry

Camp E C., Attorney at Law, Church st near Gay, over Geo. H Smith's Jewelry Store Cornick T R., Attorney at Law, Gay street, one door south of Mitchell's Drug Stors Crozier Dr. C W., Physician, east side of Gay between Main and Hill streets

Caldwell John, Pension Agent for East Tennessee, office No 4 rear of Court-House Caldwell A., Attorney at Law, office No 3 rear of Court-House

Dickinson Perez, residence on Main street, corner of Locust Duggan Lemuel, Sheriff of Sevier County, residence at Sevierville, Tenn Dakin R S., Assistant City Marshal, Bellevue street, fifth ward Deaderick D A., Clerk and Master, office on third floor of Court-House, east side Doston W R., Barber and Hair Dresser, e s of Gay b Camberland and Clinch sts Denning J M., Deputy Internal Revenue Collector, Church st., Auh block, up stairs Dwyer Wm., Produce dealer, etc. west side of market square David Jacob, Clothier and Merchant Tailor, 62 Gay street, west side DePue C W., dealer in Stoves, Sheet Iron and Tinware, west side Gay street Dobson John A., Assistant Marshal of the City, corner State and Front streets Davis Saml. H., & Co., Produce Dealers and Cattle Brokers, east side of Gay street Davis & Jones, Butchers ond Dealers in Family Supplies, corner Union and Guy sts David L., Merchant Tailor, west side Gay between Union and Asylum streets Dawson R M., Artist and Portrait Painter, corner Gay and Asylum streets Dickinson P., & Co., Dry Goods, Groceries, etc., 1, 3 and 5 Gay street corner of Main Duncan J M., manufacturer of Stoneware, McGhee street

BUSINESS DIRECTORY

Duncan J M., dealer in Groceries, etc., McGhee street Danner H C., Watchmaker and Jeweler, at W C Ingles' Drug Store, 48 Gay street

H

Exchange and Deposit Bank, east side Gay street between Church and Clinch Eckle Wm P., Salesman at Rayl & Boyd's Dry Goods Store, Gay st near Cumberland Eckle Wm K., Architect and Builder, corner of Hill and Prince streets Eifler L., Restaurant and Saloon, north side of Cumberland street, opp Lamar House Ennis F., Tailor and Renovator of Clothing, e s Gay one door s Cowan, McClung & Co East Tennessee & Virginia Railroad Shop, near railroad, east side of Atkin House East Stenessee & Georgia Railroad Shop, near railroad, east side of Broad street Erwin J L., Bar Room, Gay street near East Tenn. & Va. Railroad Depot

F

Finnegan Rev. M J., Pastor Catholic Church, corner of Crooked and Vine streets Fahnestock B., Carpenter and Builder, Asylum street, between Prince and Crooked Fahnestock P A., Carpenter, with B Fahnestock, Asylum street Franklin Ben., Boot and Shoe maker, west side of market square Fanz & Brother, Fresh Meat, Groceries and Produce, east side of market square Flanders J C., Hotel keeper, Lamar House, corner of Gay and Cumberland streets Flournoy Chas. H., Claim Agent, west side Gay street, between Main and Cumberland First National Bank, east side Gay between Church and Clinch streets Fisher Wm., Assistant Marshal of the City, office City Hall Flenniken B P & E H., Brickmakers and Contractors, corner Crooked and Oxford sts Finton John, dealer in Groceries, etc., Main street, East Knoxville French Dr. A M., Physician, Atkin House, near railroad

Fleming John M., Attorney at Law, at Press and Herald Offic, east side Gay street

G

Glenn James H., dealer in Family Groceries, etc., 6 west side Gay street Gaut & Beard, dealers in Groceries and Produce, 74 Gay street Greer S., Boot and Shoe maker, Prince street between Cumberland and Church sts Goodman H., dealer in General Produce, Prince street near market square Grisham P H., Groceries, Produce, etc., west side of market square Gunloch H C., Liquors and Groceries, east side of market square Gordon Thos., Barber and Hair Dresser under Lamar House, Gay street Gaines & Co., Boots, Shoes, Leather, etc., 64 Gay street, west side Goins & Hicks, Blacksmithing and Horse Shoeing, Prince st b Main and Cumberland Gamble L B., Colonel First Regiment of State Guards, residence Knoxville Gratz L A., Attorney at Law, east side of Gay in Atkin Building, up stairs Goodolin Mrs., Boarding House, corner of Gay and Clinch streets Gosdorfer S., & Brother, Dry Goods and Clothing, w s Gay st opp First National Bk. Goetz E., Physician and Surgeon, office north side Clinch street Gilbert J H., & Brother, dealers in Dry Goods, Groceries and Provisions, w s Gay st Glass Henry E., dealer in Groceries and Produce, corner Main and Water streets Golden Dennis, Retail dealer in Liquors, west side Gay street, near Reservoir Graf L., proprietor Brewery, west side Goad street, near Reservoir Graf J., proprietor Brewery, west side Gay street, near Reservoir

H

Manna & Whitacre, proprietors Franklin House, Main street opposite Court-House Haley James E., Saloen Keeper, Union street, between Gay and Prince Mazen & Son, Paper and Flour dealers, south side Church street, near Gay Hall & Murphy, Attorneys at Law, no. 1 rear of Court-House Hall R L., County Register, office first floor of Court-House, Main street Hudiburgh John L., Corporation Tax Collector, and dealer in Groeeries, etc., Union st Heap & Chapp, Stoves, Tinware and House Furnishing Goods, 31 Gay street Hill & Co., Drugs and Medicines, west side market square Hall J S & N R., Dry Goods and Groeeries, west side of market square Heart F & Brother, Clothing and Dry Goods, east side of Gay b Cumberland and Church Hill Anderson, Boot and Shoe maker, Spring st near Knoxville and Charleston r r VESS DIRECTORY.

Hill M & Bro., General Provision Store, corner Gay and Asylum streets Howell & McCall, dealers in Groceries, etc., fork of Main and Cumb. sts. East Knoxville Hughes M J., Job Printer, etc., east side Gay street, Ramsey's hall Hoss L C., dealer in Dry Goods, Groceries and Clothing, west side of Gay Haupt J F., House and Sign Painter, Cumberland street between Gay and State Havely J M., House and Sign Painter, over Ingles' Drug Store, west side Gay street Hodge & Bro., dealers in Groceries and Produce, corner of Gay and Church streets Haws T & Co., Publishers, Job Printers and Book Binders, ws Gay, Whig building Helms John E., Secretary and Treasurer Knoxville Gas Works, south side of Main st Hall Crawford W., U S District Attorney, office No 2 rear of Court-House Hall E T., Judge Circuit Court, office No 5 rear of Court-House

Ingles W C., Druggist, No. 48 Gay street, west side, between Cumberland and Church

Jourolmon R D., Justice of the Peace, and Dept. Register for East Tenn. e end c-h Jones C W., County Judge, office Main street, south-west corner court-house

Jourolmon J H., Book keeper at W C Ingles' Drug Store

Jones Jerry, Barber and Hair Dresser, under Lamar House

Jackson Pleasant, Barber and Hair Dresser, under Lamar House

Jack J P., Deputy United States Marshal, no. 2 rear of Court-House Johnson Thomas, Dry Goods and Groceries, west side of Gay near Clinch

Jackson A G., Director in East Tennessee & Virginia Railroad

Joy Wm., retail dealer in Groceries and Liquors, west side Gay b Reservoir and Vine Johnson Manuel, Boot and Shoe Maker, west side Gay street near Reservoir street Jones James, Eating House, west side of Gay street near Railroad

K

Kinzel H J., Street Superintendent, between High and Asylum streets King J M., Attorney at Law, east side Gay street, between Main and Cumberland

Kern Peter, Baker and Confectioner, west side Market Square Kuhlman F W., Confectioner, No 10 Gay street

Kennedy A., jr., Merchant, Rockford

Keys Wm., Trade Stable and Draying, n c Crooked and Vine streets

Kennedy James, Contractor and Builder, corner Clinch and State streets

Koehler V J., Insurance Agent, north side Cumberland st., between Gay and Prince Key John, Retail dealer in Liquors, west side Gay street

Kelly W J., dealer in Produce and Groceries Main street, East Knoxville

Knoxville & Kentucky Railroad Depot, west of Broad street

Knoxville Iron Company, on East Tennessee & Georgia Railroad, west of Depot Knoxville Leather Company, on second creck near Knoxville & Charleston Railroad

1.

Luttrell J C., Postmaster, 57 Gay street, east side

Luttrell Saml. B., Assistant Postmaster, 57 Gay screet

Lord H D., Watchmaker and Jeweler, 34 Gay street corner of Cumberland

Logan & Logan, Attorneys at Law, c Church and Gay sts over Smith's Jewelry Store Lowe J., dealer in Wines, Liquors, Cigars, etc., corner Cumberland and Gay streets Lowe J., & Co., Livery and Sale Stable, n side of Cumberland b Gay and State sts Livingston Edward, porter to S H Davis & Co. east side Gay street near Cumberland Lewis Thomas, Produce, Grocery, Commission Merchant, e s Gay b Clinch and Church Lewis S D J., Salesman at J B Rhea's, east side of Gay, Coffin block

Lusk J P., Constable and Deputy Marshal, office rear of Court-House

Locke E C., Family Groceries and Tobacco Store, Cumberland st opp Lamar House LeVere Rev. G W., Pastor Shiloh Presbyterian Church, on Clinch street near Henley Lester & Brother, Boot and Shoe makers, 134 Gay street, west side Lillard Wm., proprietor Flouring Mill, west side Broad street

M

Mann H., & Co., Clothing and Gents' Furnishing Goods, c Gay and Cumb. streets Mynatt H L W., County Trustee, Main street east corner Court-House Moren Garrett, Bar Room on Gay street between Reservoir and Vine

32

Morgan J H., Homeopathic Physician, corner Church and Gay streets up stairs Morley S C., Chief Police, office City Hall, market square Morrow Charles, Justice of the Peace, and Commissioner of Registration McBath Will. R., Circuit Clerk, office north-west corner Court-House Mitchell & McAffry, Manufacture and deal in Saddles and Harness, c Prince & Cumb Martin John & Bro., Manufacture and deal in Tin and Sheet Iron ware, c Gay & Union McClung H L., General Insurance Agent, No 59 Gay Street McAfee J A., Carriage maker, Prince street, between Church and Clinch Miller F., Grocery and Produce store, Prince street, between Clinch and Union Miller & Dogan, Blacksmiths, Prince street, between Clinch and Union Minton G W., Produce dealer, west side market square Munson & Seymour, Real Estate and Claim Agents, over Ex. and Dep. Bank, Gay st Mitchell S D & Co., Druggists and Apothecaries, No 55 Gay street McIntosh Dr J C., Physician, north side of Clinch street, near Gay McClannahan S H., Boarding House, corner of Gay and Front streets Moses Jas C., dealer in Hardware, etc., No 56 Gay street McClung, Gillespie & Co., wholesale dealers in Dry Goods, etc., east side Gay street May E F., manufacturer and dealer in Saddles and Harness, No 120 Gay street Maloy Jas., Millinery and Fancy Goods, east side Gay street, opposite Lamar House Morton Dr J H., Physician and Surgeon, east side Gay st., 2 doors south Post-Office McClanahan John G., Milling, etc., 1st creek, foot of Main street McEwen R N & Co., retail Dry Goods, Boots, Shoes, etc., e s Gay, b Cumb. & Church Mills Wm B., Gas Fitter, Main street, between Prince and Crooked Martin David, Barber and Hair Dresser, west side Gay st., between Clinch and Union McCroskey E E & Co., Dry Goods merchants, west side Gay, b Union and Asylum sts McGrath Jno., Groceries and Liquors, Union street, between Prince and Gay McLain H N., Dry Goods and Groceries, Union street, between Prince and Gay

Nelson & Cruze, dealers in Dry Goods and Groccries, west side Gay st, south of Main Newman David, Blacksmith, Prince street between Church and Clinch North J W & Co., Iron Founders, etc., Broad street, north of railroad Nelson Matthew, Business office corner Gay and Hill streets Netherland & Sooy, Millers, 1st creek, corner Water and Vine streets

Newman Samuel, Undertaker and Furniture manufacturer, cor Cumb. and High sts

Ogden H., Wagon maker, west side Prince street, between Main and Cumberland Odell & Bro., Groceries and Provisions, west side market square O'Conner R., Retail Merchant, west side Gay st., first door south of People's Bank O'Keefe Miss Mary, Milliner and dealer in Fancy Goods, 52 Gay st, up stairs Osburn L H., 1st Assistant Marshal of the City, office City Hall, market square O'Keefe Morice, retail Liquor dealer, west side Gay between Union and Asylum sts Owen B G., Attorney at Law, corner Cumberland and Water streets

P

Page C E., manufacturer and dealer in Boots and Shoes, 16 Gay street

Payne Richard, General Water Hauler, Temperance Hill, East Knoxville People's Bank, west side Gay street, between Church and Clinch

Parham & Thornton, Livery and Sale Stable, Prince st, between Clinch and Union Powell & Osborne, dealers in Dry Goods, Groceries etc., corner Prince and Union sts

Payne R S & Co., dealers in Hais, Caps and Furs, No 108 Gay street

Pegg Dr T F., Dental Surgeon, Gay street, 2 doors south of Post-Office

Park C W., Barrel manufacturer, foot of Prince street, near river

Putnam Dr A C., Physician and Surgeon, east side Gay st, b Cumberland & Church Parham E N., dealer in Dry Goods and Grocerics, east side market square Patton Wm., retail dealer in Dry Goods and Provisions, west side Gay street

Parker & Staurd, retail Family Grocery, west side Gay street

Park Rev Jas., Pastor First Presbyterian church, corner Church and State streets Paxton Dr Jno W., Physician, at W C Ingles' Drug Store, Gay street

Quinn & Griffin, retail dealers in Liquors, etc., No 14 Gay street

R

Rhea & Harris, Dentists, corner Gay and Asylum streets

Ramage & Co., Press and Herald Office, Deaderick block, east side Gay street

Runolds Edward, Barber and Hair Dresser, west side Gay street Ristine Jno S., manufacturer of Furniture, etc., 2d creek, foot of Cumberland street Rogers Dr M L., Physician, Church street, between Prince and Crooked streets Roach & Owens, Family Groeers, Gay street, between Reservoir and Vine

Rice & Kerr, Sale Stable, Alley north of Main, between Gay and State streets

Rhea J B., dealer in Dry Goods, Boots and Shoes, Coffin block, east side Gay street Ristine Jno S jr., Furniture Dealer, No 120 Gay street

Rule Wm., County Court Clerk, Office at Court-House, Main street Rogers P L., Cashier Knoxville Bank, east side Gay street Rice Chas A., Chief Clerk U. S. Assessor's Office, east side Gay st, over 1st Nat. Bank Rayl & Boyd, dealers in Dry Goods, etc., No 40 Gay street

Richards R H & Co., Books and Stationery, East Tenn Book House, e s Gay street Robison W C., Assistant Marshal, residence 5th ward, north railroad Rodgers Dr Jas., Physician, at W C Ingles' Drug Store, west side Gay street

Southern Express Company, office No 92 Gay street

Staub & Co., Merchant Tailors, south side Cumberland street between Gay and State Smith Sanford C., Assistant Marshal, City Hall

Sanford E J & Co., wholesale Druggists, Gay street, opposite First National Bank Scott J F., Family Groceries, Confectioneries, etc., No 72 Gay street Schleier T M., Photograph Gallery, east side Gay street, 3d story over Ramsey's Hall

Story Lemuel, Restaurant, east side Gay street, basement of Ramsey's block

Scott Jos T., with M & N Stern, west side Gay, between Main and Cumberland sts Somerv. Ile Jas., Superintendent Knoxv.lle Gas Light Co., south side Main street

Sturm V H., Grocer and Confectioner, corner Gay and Cumberland streets

Sandberg C A., Boot and Shoe maker, corner Gay and Cumberland streets, up stairs Sneed, Comfort & French, Attorneys at Law, Cumberland street, under Lamar House Seay Robt H., Master of Car Repairs, East Tennessee and Virginia railroad shop Simpson & Driskell, dealers in Family Groceries, ws Gay st., b Union and Asylum Spiro A M & Co., Bakery and Confectionery, ws Gay street, b Union and Asylum Scott Albert, Barber and Hair Dresser, west side Gay st, between Union and Asylum Shea Peter, Provision Store, corner Gay and Reservoir streets

Sturm C., Bakery and Confectionery, corner Main and Water streets

Shepard & Atkin, Saw and Planing Mill, east side 1st creek, near Cumberland street Stevens A R., Blacksmith, Water street near railroad

Sullivan P., Bar room, Water street, next railroad

Stewart G A., Bar room, Gay street, between Reservoir and Vine

Simpson Aaron, with H Mann & Co., corner Gay and Cumberland streets

Shepard & Atkin, Furniture Dealers and Undertakers, w s Gay b Union and Asylum Schmid Rudolph, Fashionable Barber, east side Gay street, opposite Lamar House Smith Geo H., Watches, Clocks and Jewelry, corner Gay and Church streets Shwikert L., Merchant Tailor, west side Gay street

Shropshire P & Co., Auction and Commission Merchants, w s Gay, near Cumberland Shoemaker T R., Dry Goods, Notions, etc., No 21 Gay street

Stacy & Angel, dealers in Fire Arms and Ammunition, No 34 Gay street

Smith & Lyons, Watchmakers and Jewelers, es Gay, between Church and Clinch sts Seay Wm F., Justice Pence and Entry Taker, East Knoxville, b Main and Camb sts Staples R M., dealer in Groceries and Produce, No 8 west side Gay street Stern M & N., dealers in Clothing and Dry Goods, west side Gay street

Swan W H., Recorder and Treasurer, office City Hall

Scaggs David, Barber and Hair Dresser, east side Gay street

Simpson J F., Saddler and Harness Maker, north-cast corner Clinch and Prince sta Smith Wm B., Livery and Sale Stable, south-east corner Clinch and I lince streets Steele & Swanner, Groceries and Produce, east side Market Square

Swan & Baker, Dry Goods and Groceries, corner Union street and Market Square

BUSINESS DIRECT

Scherf John, dealer in Wincs, Liquors and Cigars, Gay street, under Lamar House Smith M F & Co., Auction and Commission Merchants, No 58 Gay street

Tarwater & Ambrose, Steam Sash and Blind Manufactory, McGhee st., west Broad Turner J L., Saloon, west side Market Square

Tierney Mrs., Groceries, etc., west side Market Square Thompson S S., with Barry & McDannel, No 10 Gay street Tadlock Dr A B., Physician, east side Gay, Atkin building, up stairs Toole J M., Dry Goods, Notions, etc., corner Gay and Cumberland streets

Terry D G., Boot and Shoe maker, at Page's, west side Gay street

Tarwater H C., Tax Collector Knox Co., office with County Clerk, Court-House Thornburgh J M., Attorney General, Union Bank building, south side Main street Todd & Squire, Claim Agents, Union Bank building, Main street

Van Gilder J S., Booi, Shoe and Leather Manufacturer, west side Gay street Van Gilder, T I., wholesale and retail dealer in Hardware, west side Gay street Vestal Robert, with H Mann & Co., corner Gay and Cumberland streets

Wilds Luke & Sons, Brick Makers and builders, north side Mabry st., East Knoxville Warters J S & Bro., dealers in Dry Goods, Groceries, etc., No 130 Gay street Williams P M., Agent Rockford Manufacturing Co., office Coffin block, Gay street Weiser C A., Boot Maker, etc., corner Cumberland and Gay sts., up stairs Wilds R L., Assistant Marshal, City Hall

Wilson W P., Wholesale dealer in Groceries, Liquors, etc., west side Gay street Washburn & Prosser, Attorneys at Law, east side Gay street, south of Main Williams J D., Retail dealer in Liquors, Tobacco, etc., south side Main st., east of Gay

Wells Thos., Assistant Marshal, Jacksboro street, fifth ward

Wasson Geo T., Barber and Hair Dresser, east side Gay street

White Chas L., Clerk at Post Office, No 57 Gay street

Winter & Walling, Groceries and Produce, east side Market Square

Wilcox M C., Sup't Public Instruction Knox Co., Cumberland st., under Lamar House White Geo M & Son, dealers in Grocerics and Produce, No 52 Gay street

Winfree G G., Retail dealers in Liquors, Cigars, etc., east side Gay street Walley J H., Tobacconist, etc., Ramsey block, east side Gay street Wedekind & Hope, Merchant Tailors, west side Gay st., bet. Main and Cumberland Wilcox M C & Co., dealers in Coal and Lumber, office under Lamar House, Cumb. st Woodruff W W & Co., dealers in Hardware, etc., Coffin block, Gay street Wood Joseph, Watchmaker and Jeweler, No 96 Gay street



Young Dr J B., Physician, office east side of Market Square.

[NOTE .- The following names, inadvertently omitted at the proper places, will be corrected in future numbers, with any other omissions or inaccuracies that may occur.]

Fouche Dr Jno., Bentist, office at residence, south side Church street Hill Dr O F., Physician and Surgeon, office n s Cumberland, b Prince and Crooked sts Ludlow Dr J R., Physician and Surgeon, residence n s Mabry st., near 1st creek.



KNOXVILLE DAILY & WEEKLY WHIG,

Job Printers, Book Binders and Rulers,

Whig Building, Gay Street, between Clinch and Union Sts.

WEEKLY PRESS AND MESSENGER,

Knoxville, East Tennessee.

The Press and Messenger is essentially a paper for country readers. It has an extensive circulation in almost every hamlet, village and town in East Tennessee, from Chattanooga to Bristol.

On January 1st, 1869, the Press and Messenger was enlarged to an octavo sheet. Its subscription price is only Two Dollars per annum, and to clubs of fifty or over it is furnished for One Dollar per annum to each subscriber. It is the largest and the cheapest weekly journal in East Tennessee. Sample copies sent to any address. Special attention paid to Agriculture and Markets.

RAMACE & CO., Publishers.